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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
Q1. Is the selected Consultant Team conflicted out of future procurements related to the 1909 Stadium Arena? 
A1.   Based on the information provided, no conflict is anticipated at this time. 
 
Q2. Will the wining proposer for this assessment be conflicted out of any future work related in any way to this 

project (both as prime and/or subconsultant professional service provider)?? 
A2. Please see answer #01 in relation to conflicts associated with future 1909 Stadium Arena procurements.  Please note, 

conflicts will be considered on a case by case basis. 
 
Q3. Does involvement in this project in any way preclude the architect or other team members from eligibility for 

future phases of the Arena project? 
A3. Based on the information provided, no conflict is anticipated at this time. 
 
Q4.       Will being involved with prior project phases of the National Western Center preclude participation in the 1909 

Stadium Arena Historic Structure & Public Market Viability Assessment project? 
 A4. No. 

 
Q5. What is the anticipated work flow for the project?  Will the "highest and best use" study only be performed if 

it is determined that a public market is not feasible or will both tasks occur simultaneously? 
A5.  See Addendum #1, answer 7. 
 
Q6. At this non-fee proposal stage, how shall we handle the statement of participation for any MWBE firms? 
A6. Provide a M/WBE participation percentage commitment based on your best estimate of what that scope of work will 

entail and what percentage you will be able to use a Denver certified M/WBE to perform this work.  The selected 
Consultant Team will be bound to the percentage committed in the LOI.  

 
Q7. Please let us know how we should handle the request for fee and/or percentage on each of our Letters of Intent. 

We certainly don’t want to guess at a fee or percentage at the qualifications stage. Is the correct response NA?  
“Bidder intends to utilize the aforementioned M/WBE, SBE, EBE or DBE for the Work/Supply described 
above.  The cost of the work and percentage of the total subcontractor M/WBE, SBE, EBE or DBE bid amount 
is:” 

A7. Per the RFQ instructions, the Prime Contractor completes the Commitment to MWBE Participation form, entering 
in the percentage of the overall contract value to be completed by qualified M/WBE firms. Each subcontractor 
completes a Letter of Intent (LOI) form, and should enter the anticipated portion of the overall percentage from the 
Commitment to MWBE Participation form in the box adjacent to the text that begins with “Consultant intends to 
utilize the aforementioned M/WBE . . .. For example, if Prime has committed to 15%, and Subcontractor A will 
contribute 5% of the 15% (1/3 of the goal), enter 5% in the cell. Fee totals are not requested at this stage of the 
procurement. 

 
Q8. Regarding the required list of Proposed MBEs and/or WBE, please clarify how you would like primes to 

indicate “the committed level of participation expressed as a percentage and, as applicable, an actual dollar 
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amount and any other required information for each MBE or WBE which the prime consultant intends to 
utilize in performing the services on this Project”?  Since a fee proposal is not being sought as part of this RFQ 
response, can you confirm that only a percentage of participation should be provided and not an actual dollar 
amount? If no dollar amount is to be provided as part of the RFQ response, is the proposed percentage 
considered an estimate until an actual dollar amount is provided as part of the subsequent RFP process for this 
project? 

A8. Primes are to provide the M/WBE participation percentage, not an actual dollar amount. 
 
Q9. Does the City have a metric for success of the Market that they will be using? 
A9. Public Market consultant team should help determine specific metrics for success. However, it is expected that metrics 

would include at least: 1) public market business viability (income, profitability); 2) market vendor business viability 
(number served, total income, total profitability); 3) economic impacts on local, small businesses; 4) number of 
customers and sales to neighborhood residents; 5) number of jobs filled by neighborhood residents; 6) brand 
recognition of public market; 7) public market as  a reason for visiting the NWC site; 8)sales of Colorado-grown and 
Colorado-made products. 

 
Q10. Roof Framing Evaluation and Analysis - To complete a “comprehensive structural condition evaluation” (as noted 

in HSA Annotated Scope of Work) and subsequent roof framing load analysis, it will be necessary to inspect the 
condition of all the roof framing members and connections.  Also, in the absence of any as-built drawings, member 
sizes/dimensions and connections will need to measured and documented. Since the roof is a large complex 
structure, would it be acceptable at this preliminary phase to select sample smaller areas to inspect and measure 
that would result in a preliminary evaluation of the roof structure?  Additionally, will CCD/NWC provide the 
equipment (lift, scaffolding, ladders, etc.) and workers/operators to provide suitable access to the roof framing or 
will that cost be the responsibility of the consultant? 

A10.        Consultant Teams shall refer to the State Historical Fund Annotated Scope of Work for a description of the intent, goals 
and methodology to be employed in the execution of the HSA. Consultant Team will be responsible for all costs associated 
with access necessary to complete the study. 

 
Q11. Scope Item 3. Historic Structure Assessment, Item d - Evaluation of material integrity is stated for "utility (water?) 

supply lines, stormwater, and wastewater drain lines".  Based on Q3/A3 in Addendum #1, is this item deleted from 
the RFQ? 

A11 Consultant Team shall follow the recommendations and deliverable outline included in the State Historical Fund 
Annotated Scope of Work. 

 
Q12. Can you explain more about how to use the Public Market Advisory Group? This group has not yet been formed 

(and will need to be recruited), but the RFQ asks for 5 meetings. What are these meetings for? As I read the 
RFQ, I believe this group is not the “yes, we like this idea, go with it”, as that should be the city with regards to 
feasibility, so are they more like a focus group of specialists we can tap for insights? Do they all need to have buy-
in for the plan? 

A12.  The purpose for the Advisory Group is to bring together a diverse group of subject matter experts to advise the City and 
Consultant team on potential future uses and renovation of the building and to become champions for the Stadium 
Arena. The City will work with the Consultant Team, as well as other key stakeholders and advisors, to determine the 
makeup of the Advisory Group and agendas for the five meetings. 

 
Q13. Does the city expect 100% operations recovery as soon as the public market opens? How much of a subsidy 

would the city be open to accepting before it is deemed “not feasible?” This would affect whether we need to 
explore additional highest and best use options during the study. 

A13. The City will be looking to the Consultant Team to understand the sensitivity of the Business Plan through this 
commercial feasibility study. At this time, no decisions or guidelines regarding profitability or subsidization have 
been established, and the City will rely on dialogue with the Consultant Team through the study to develop an 
understanding of the development/rehabilitation potential and establish return on investment guidelines. 

 
Q14. On page 8, Section 2.1a, it states, "Using a combination of existing data and capture of new data (via surveys, 

interviews, or other methods), the Consultant team will estimate the potential market demand and sales 
revenues for a year-round public market located at the 1909 Stadium Arena." As far as existing data, does the 
city have access to existing local sales data for the Globeville, Elyria, and Swansea area? Also, does the city 
have information on when the new RTD line will open and what are the existing projections for that line? 

A14. The City has some local sales data for GES and will share the market data it has available with the selected team, but 
we would expect the market analyst to pull the data needed to do the analysis. The first phase of the N Line, including 
National Western Stock Show Station, was supposed to be open in 2018, but RTD has recently delayed the opening due 
to construction challenges. RTD has not announced a new date for completion and opening of the first phase. General 
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information about the N Line can be found here: http://www.rtd-denver.com/n-line.shtml#stations.  Daily boardings at 
the National Western Stock Show Station were estimated in 2011 in the Final Environmental Impact Statement, which 
can be found here: http://www.rtd-fastracks.com/nm_117  on page 4-30 of Chapter 4: Transportation. We are not aware 
if RTD has updated these estimates based on the projected new uses at the National Western Center. 

 
Q15. Will travel costs for national team members be reimbursed, or will the consultant need to estimate costs and 

absorb in their hourly rates? “Reproduction and travel costs, if requested by the City, shall be reimbursed at 
actual cost if approved in advance by Project Manager. Such costs are, in all such instances, included in the 
hourly rates paid by the City.” 

A15. Travel costs for out-of-town consultants will be reimbursed by the City at cost, with prior authorization from the 
Project Manager. 

 
Q16.      Is there any flexibility in the interview date of August 10? We have key team members who are traveling that day. 
A16.       Per the revised procurement schedule in Addendum 1, the interviews have been moved to August 17. 
 
 
  
END OF ADDENDUM NO.     2              
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